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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Herfy Food Services Company 
(Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Riyadh-Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Herfy Food Services Company (“the Company”), which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021, and the statement of profit or loss, comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as at December 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements endorsed by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and 
Professional Accountants (“SOCPA”). 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the Company’s financial statements and we have fulfilled our 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters.



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the Shareholders of Herfy Food Services Company 
(Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Riyadh-Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 
Inventory Valuation – Net Realizable Value (NRV) assessment

The impairment assessment for Inventory is 
considered as a key audit matter due to the size of the 
balance (As at 31 December 2021: SR  135 Million
(2020: 105 million) and the significant judgments 
made by management in the valuation of inventories. 
The main assumption relates to the existence of 
impairment indicators or their absence to validate the 
provision and/or reversal of provision recorded by
the Company against the inventory.

Inventory should be stated at lower of cost and Net 
Realizable Value (“NRV”).

Refer to note 4.4 to the Financial Statements for the 
Inventory Policy and note 11 for the breakup of 
Inventory and movement in provision for damaged 
and slow-moving inventory.

Our audit was focused on NRV of inventory that 
existed at year-end, due to the estimates involved in 
calculating the NRV and comparing it with provision 
recorded by management. We have verified the 
procedures performed by management and 
performed a critical assessment of the Inventory 
valuation and NRV review process. Our opinion is 
based on the following audit procedures: 

We reviewed the estimate of costing method and 
accounting policy that is used by the Company to 
value its inventories.

We attended the physical inventory count of the 
Company’s inventory and analyzed the condition 
of damaged and slow-moving inventories.

We inquired management personnel for their 
rationale of recording inventory provision/reversal 
and their assessment of inventory valuation. 

We tested on a sample basis for NRV from each 
business unit to ensure that we have covered all 
operating segments.

We compared the NRV with the weighted average 
cost and provision recorded by the management to 
conclude whether the inventory is recorded at 
lower of cost and NRV. 



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the Shareholders of Herfy Food Services Company 
(Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Riyadh-Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Other Information

Other information consists of the information included in the Company’s 2021 annual report, other than the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other information in 
its annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other 
standards and pronouncements endorsed by SOCPA and Regulations for Companies and the Company’s By-
Laws and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance, i.e. the Board of Directors, are responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process. 



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the Shareholders of Herfy Food Services Company 
(Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Riyadh-Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the internal control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

To the Shareholders of Herfy Food Services Company 
(Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Riyadh-Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

For Al-Bassam & Co.

Ibrahim Ahmed Al-Bassam

Certified Public Accountant
License No. 337

25 Shaban 1443H
28 March 2022G















HERFY FOOD SERVICES COMPANY  

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2021 

(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated) 

12 

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Herfy Food Services Company ("the Company") is a Saudi Joint-Stock Company formed under the laws of 

the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and registered under the commercial register under No. 1010037702 and 

unified No. 7000329776 on 04 Jamad-ul-Awal 1401H (corresponding to 09 March 1981). 

The Company is engaged in establishing and operating restaurants, providing companies and others with cooked 

meals, production and sale of bakery and pastry products, the sale and purchase of lands for the purpose of 

constructing building and own use, maintaining, and leases stores and food store fridges. 

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of restaurants owned and leased by the Company are 40 and 346 

respectively (31 December 2020: 40 owned and 348 leased), operating in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under 

the trademark of "HERFY". The Company also operates bakeries and bakery shops "Herfy Bakeries / Doka" 

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the Company's head office and aforementioned 

restaurants, bakeries, shops and factories. 

The Company’s Head Office is located at the following address: 

Herfy Food Services Company 

Al Moroug District 

P.O. Box 86958 

Riyadh 11632 

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia  

The Company has the following branches: 

S. No Branch C.R. No. Unified No. Date 

1 Herfy Meat Processing Factory 1010200515 7006522085 25 Safar 1441 H 

2 Herfy Factory for Cake & Pasties 1010294755 7012209644 25 Ramadan 1441 H 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1.  STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and 

pronouncements that are endorsed by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants 

(“SOCPA”). 

2.2. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT 

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost method except for the following: 

a) Investments that are measured at fair value; and

b) Employees' post-employment benefits recognized at the present value of future obligations using the

Projected Unit Credit Method.

2.3. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY 

These financial statements have been presented in Saudi Riyals (SR) which is the Company's functional and 

presentation currency. All financial information presented in SR has been rounded to the nearest SR, unless 

otherwise mentioned. 
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(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2021 
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 

 

2.4. NEW AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 

 

New amendments to standards issued and applied effective in year 2021  

 

 

 

  

Amendments 

to standard 
Description 

Effective for 

annual years 

beginning on 

or after 

Summary of the amendment 

    

IFRS 9, IAS 

39, IFRS 7, 

IFRS 4 and 

IFRS 16 

Interest Rate Benchmark 

Reform – Phase 2 
January 1, 2021 

These amendments modify specific hedge 

accounting requirements to allow hedge 

accounting to continue for affected hedges 

during the period of uncertainty before the 

hedged items or hedging instruments affected by 

the current interest rate benchmarks are amended 

as a result of the on-going interest rate 

benchmark reforms. The amendments also 

introduce new disclosure requirements to IFRS 

7 for hedging relationships that are subject to the 

exceptions introduced by the amendments to 

IFRS 9. 

IFRS 16 

Amendments to IFRS 16 

Leasing – Covid-19 

Related Rent Concessions 

April 1, 2021 

This amendment extend the exemption from 

assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent 

concession is a lease modification for payments 

originally due on or before June 30, 2022 (rather 

than payment due on or before June 30, 2021). 

IAS 37 
Onerous Contracts – Cost 

of Fulfilling a Contract 
January 1, 2022 

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of 

fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that 

relate directly to the contract. These 

amendments apply to contracts for which the 

entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 

the beginning of the annual reporting period in 

which the entity first applies the amendments. 
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2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 

2.4. NEW AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (CONTINUED) 

New standards, amendments and revised IFRS issued but not yet effective (continued) 

Amendments to 

standard 
Description 

Effective for annual 

years beginning on or 

after 

Summary of the amendment 

IFRS 16, IFRS 9, 

IAS 41 and IFRS 

1 

Annual 

Improvements to 

IFRS Standards 

2018–2020 

January 1, 2022 

IFRS 16: The amendment removes the illustration 

of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements 

IFRS 9: The amendment clarifies that in applying 

the ’10 per cent’ test to assess whether to 

derecognize a financial liability, an entity 

includes only fees paid or received between the 

entity (the borrower) and the lender. The 

amendment is to be applied prospectively to 

modifications and exchanges that occur on or 

after the date the entity first applies the 

amendment. 

IAS 41: The amendment removes the requirement 

in IAS 41 for entities to exclude cash flows for 

taxation when measuring fair value. 

IFRS 1: The amendment provides additional relief 

to a subsidiary which becomes a first-time adopter 

later than its parent in respect of accounting for 

cumulative translation difference. 

IAS 16 

Property, Plant and 

Equipment: Proceeds 

before 

Intended Use 

January 1, 2022 

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost 

of an item of property, plant and equipment any 

proceeds from selling items produced before that 

asset is available for use. Additionally, the 

amendments also clarify the meaning of ‘testing 

whether an asset is functioning properly’. 

IFRS 3 

Reference to the 

Conceptual 

Framework 

January 1, 2022 

The amendment as a whole updated IFRS 3 so that 

it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework 

instead of the 1989 Framework. 

 

 
IFRS 17 

Insurance 

Contracts 
January 1, 2023 

This is comprehensive new accounting standard 

for insurance contracts covering recognition and 

measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once 

effective, IFRS 17 (along with its subsequent 

amendments) will replace IFRS 4 Insurance  

 

Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005. 

IAS 1 

Classification of 

Liabilities as Current 

or Non-current 

 

January 1, 2023 

The amendment has clarified what is meant by a 

right to defer settlement, that a right to defer must 

exist at the end of the reporting period, that 

classification is unaffected by the likelihood that 

an entity will exercise its deferral right and that 

only if an embedded derivative in a convertible 

liability is itself an equity instrument the terms of 

a liability would not impact its classification. 
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2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 

2.4. NEW AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (CONTINUED)  

 

Management anticipates that these new standards interpretations and amendments will be adopted in the 

Company’s financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these interpretations and 

amendments may have no material impact on the financial statements of the Company in the period of initial 

application.  

  

Amendments 

to standard 
Description 

Effective for 

annual years 

beginning on or 

after 

Summary of the amendment 

IAS 1 and IFRS 

Practice 

Statement 2 

Disclosure of 

accounting policies 

January 1, 2023 This amendment deals with assisting entities to 

decide which accounting policies to disclose in 

their financial statements 

IAS 8 

Amendment to 

definition of 

accounting estimate 
January 1, 2023 

This amendments regarding the definition of 

accounting estimates to help entities to distinguish 

between accounting policies and accounting 

estimates. 

IAS 12 Income taxes January 1, 2023 

This amendment deals with clarification 

regarding accounting of deferred tax on 

transactions such as leases and decommissioning 

obligations 

Amendment to 

IFRS 10 and IAS 

28 

Sale or Contribution 

of Assets between an 

Investor and its 

Associate or Joint 

Venture 

N/A 

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with 

situations where there is a sale or contribution of 

assets between an investor and its associate or 

joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state 

that gains or losses resulting from the loss of 

control of a subsidiary. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES, AND ASSUMPTIONS 

 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that affect the 

application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. The 

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are 

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making judgments about 

the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 

differ from these estimates. 
 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates 

are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the 

period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 

Critical judgments in applying the Company’s accounting policies 

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations described below, that the 

management has made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and have the most 

significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements. 

 

Determination of discount rate for present value calculations 

Discount rate represents the current market assessment of the risks specific to the Company, taking into 

consideration the tenure of the agreement and the individual risks of the underlying assets. The discount rate 

calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Company. 

 

Actuarial valuation of employees’ post-employment benefits 

The cost of the post-employment benefits (“employee benefits”) under the defined benefit plan is determined 

using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may 

differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary 

increases, mortality rates and rate of employee turnover. Due to the complexity of the valuation and its long-

term nature, a defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are 

reviewed on an annual basis or more frequently, if required. 

 

Fair value measurement and valuation process 

Certain Company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The 

Company’s management is responsible to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair 

value measurements.  

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it 

is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to 

perform the valuation. The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the 

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. 

 

Useful lives of property and equipment and intangibles 

As described in note 4, the Company estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and intangibles at the 

end of each annual reporting period. This estimate is determined after considering expected usage of the assets 

or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and future 

depreciation charges are adjusted where management believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates. 

 

Provision for zakat  

Management has assessed the zakat position having regard to the local zakat legislation, decrees issued 

periodically and conventions. Interpretation of such legislation decrees and conventions are not always clear 

and entail completion of assessment by the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (“ZATCA”). 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, except 

for land and capital work in progress which are stated at cost and are not depreciated. Capital work in progress 

represent costs relating directly to the new projects in progress and are capitalized as property, plant and 

equipment when the project is completed. However, depreciation on such assets under construction commences 

when the asset becomes available for use.  

 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 

expenditure will flow to the Company and amount can be measured reliably.  

 

 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 

 

Finance costs on borrowings to finance the construction of the qualifying assets, if any, are capitalized during 

the period of time that is required to substantially complete and prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use. 

 

When parts of property, plant and equipment are significant in cost in comparison to the total cost of the item, 

and where such parts/components have a useful life different than other parts and are required to be replaced at 

different intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and 

depreciates them accordingly. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit 

or loss as incurred. 

 

Depreciation is calculated from the date the item of property, plant and equipment are available for its intended 

use or in respect of self-constructed assets, from the date such assets are ready for the intended use. 

  

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset as follows: 
 

Asset class Years 

Buildings on owned lands 20 to 35 

Buildings on leased lands 

5 to 35 or lease period 

whichever is less 

Machinery and equipment 4 – 20 

Furniture and office equipment 6 – 7 

Motor vehicles 5 – 15 

 

If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in useful life or residual value of an item, the 

depreciation is revised prospectively to reflect the new estimates. 

 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon 

disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-

recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 

of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss.  

 

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment, if any, are recognized in accordance 

with this IFRS when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such items are 

classified as inventory. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

4.2 Investment properties 

Investment properties comprise property held for capital appreciation, long-term rental yields or both, and are 

carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Investment properties 

also include property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment properties. In addition, 

land, if any held for undetermined use is classified as investment properties and is not depreciated. When the 

development of investment properties commences, it is classified as "Capital work in progress" until 

development is complete, at which time it is transferred to the respective category, and depreciated using 

straight-line method at rates calculated to reduce the cost of assets to their estimated residual value over their 

expected useful lives of 15 to 21 years. Buildings on Leased hold lands are depreciated over lower of lease 

period or useful lives. 

 

Maintenance and normal repairs which do not materially extend the estimated useful life of an asset are charged 

to the statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. 

 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are 

recognized and presented separately within the statement of profit or loss. 

 

4.3 Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 

intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives 6 to 10 years and assessed for 

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period 

and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of 

each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 

economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as 

appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets 

with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and expenses in the expense category consistent 

with the function of the intangible assets.  

 

Intangible assets residual values, useful lives and impairment indicators are reviewed at each financial year end 

and adjusted prospectively, if considered necessary.  

 

4.4 Inventories  

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, and the cost is determined on a weighted 

average basis. The cost of finished and semi-manufactured goods includes the cost of raw materials, labor and 

indirect industrial expenditures that contribute to the conversion of raw materials to a final product. Net 

realizable value consists of the estimated selling price during the normal course of business, net of the additional 

production costs to complete and any other cost required to complete the sale. The Company reviews the 

carrying amount of the inventories on a regular basis. Where necessary the inventory is reduced to the net 

realizable value or a provision for obsolete is established in the event of any change in the pattern of use or 

physical form of the related inventory. 

 

Management estimates the net realizable value of inventories, taking into account the most reliable evidence at 

the time the estimates are used and establishes a provision for obsolete inventory. These estimates take into 

account changes in demand for goods and technological changes, quality and price fluctuations. Accordingly, 

the Company considers these factors and takes them into account to calculate the provision for obsolete, slow 

moving and defective inventories. 

 

Spares are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on the weighted average cost basis. 

An allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items, if any, is estimated at each reporting date.  
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

4.5 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances and deposits with original maturities of three months or less, 

if any. It also includes bank overdrafts which form an integral part of the Company's cash management and are 

likely to fluctuate from overdrawn to positive balances.  

 

4.6 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets  

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any asset (property, plant and 

equipment) may be impaired. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any 

affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated 

recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an 

impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, 

which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is sensitive 

to the discount rate used for the DCF (Discounted Cashflow) model as well as the expected future cash-inflows 

and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 

 

4.6 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets (Continued) 

 

Similarly, at each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment by comparing the carrying amount of 

each item of inventory (or group of similar items) with its selling price less costs to complete and sell. If an item 

of inventory (or group of similar items) is impaired, its carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less costs 

to complete and sell, and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related assets) is 

increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount (selling price less costs to complete and sell, in the 

case of inventories), but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss 

been recognized for the asset (group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 

recognized immediately in the statement of comprehensive income or loss.  

 

4.7 Equity reserves  

Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued. Retained earnings include all 

current and prior period retained profits. All transactions with owners of the Company are recorded separately 

within equity. 

 

4.8 Statutory Reserve 

In accordance with its By-laws and the Regulations for Companies in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Company 

is required to transfer 10% of its net profit for the year to a statutory reserve until such reserve equals 30% of 

its share capital. This Statutory Reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders. However, it may be 

used to increase capital after obtaining shareholder approval. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

4.9 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 

past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 

the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 

obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where 

a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is 

the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). 
 

 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 

third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received 

and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

4.10 Onerous contracts 

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognized and measured as provisions. An onerous 

contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of fulfilling 

the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. 

 

4.11 Contingent liabilities 

All contingent liabilities arising from past events that will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events that are not fully controlled by the Company or all current 

liabilities arising from past events but are not proven for the following reasons:  

 

1) There is no possibility that the flow of external resources inherent in economic benefits will be required to 

settle the obligation  

2) The amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably they should all be assessed at the date of each 

financial position and disclosed in the Company's financial statements within the contingent liabilities. 

 

4.12 Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 

measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 

amount is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective 

interest method.  

 

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Position when the obligation specified in the contract 

is discharged, cancelled or expired. The borrowings are classified as a current liability when the remaining 

maturity is less than 12 months.  

 

4.13 Employee Benefits  

 

Short-term obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating leaves, air fare, child 

education allowance, furniture allowance that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the 

end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ 

services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at amounts expected to be paid when the 

liabilities are settled. 

 

Employees’ post-employment benefits 

The liability or asset recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit. The plan is 

the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit 

obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash 

outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the 

benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 

 

Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows: 

 

Service cost 

Service costs include current service cost and past service cost are recognized immediately in the statement of 

profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or 

curtailments are recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss as past service costs. 

 

Interest cost 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 

obligation. This cost is included in employee benefits expense in the statement of profit or loss. 

 

Re-measurement gains or losses 

Re-measurement gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 

recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. 

 

4.14 Zakat 

The Company is subject to zakat in accordance with the ZATCA in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Zakat is 

provided on the accrual basis. The zakat charge is computed on the higher of the zakat base or adjusted net 

income. Any difference in the estimate is recorded when the final assessment is approved, at which time the 

provision is cleared. 

 

4.15 Foreign Currencies  

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency 

spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated 

in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

 

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of 

comprehensive income. 

 

4.16 Financial instruments 

 

4.16.1 Financial assets 

 

4.16.1.1 Classification of financial assets 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost, Fair value through other 

comprehensive income “FVOCI” or Fair value through profit and loss “FVTPL”. However, the Company 

as of the reporting date only holds financial asset carried at amortized cost and FVTPL. 

 

a) Financial assets at amortized cost 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 

designated as at FVTPL: 

 

 - the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 

flows; and 

 - the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.  
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

b) Financial assets at FVOCI 

 

Equity instruments 

 

On initial recognition, for an equity investment that is not held for trading. the Company may irrevocably elect 

to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 

 

c) Financial assets at FVTPL 

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL (for example equity held for trading and debt 

securities not classified neither as AC or FVOCI). 

 

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets 

the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or 

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

 

4.16.1 Financial assets 

 

4.16.1.1  De-recognition of financial assets 

 A financial asset or a part of a financial asset is de-recognized when: 

 

 - The right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

 - The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 

to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 

arrangement: and either: 

  a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 

asset but has transferred control of the asset 

 

4.16.1.2 Impairment of financial assets 

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the life expected credit losses associated with its financial 

assets carried at amortized cost. 

 

The Company applies the simplified approach as permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime 

losses to be recognized from the initial recognition of receivables. 

 

The Company uses a provision matrix in the calculation of the expected credit losses on receivables to 

estimate the lifetime expected credit losses, applying certain provision rates to respective contractual past 

due aging buckets. The provision matrix was developed considering the probability of default and loss given 

default which was derived from historical data of the Company and is adjusted to reflect the expected future 

outcome which includes macro-economic factors. 

 

Other instruments are considered as low risk and a Company use a provisional matrix in calculating the 

expected credit losses. 

 

A financial asset is written off only when: 

(i) that is past due, and 

(ii) there is no reasonable expectation of recovery 

 

Where financial assets are written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activities to attempt 

to recover the receivables due. Where recoveries are made, after write-off, are recognized in the statement 

of profit or loss. 
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4.16.2 Financial liabilities 

 

4.16.2.1 Initial recognition 

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of borrowings, the fair value of the 

consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs. 

 

4.16.2.2 Subsequent measurements 

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 

interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities 

are derecognized as well as through the amortization process. 

 

4.16.2.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or 

expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 

different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and 

the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.  

 

4.16.3 Offsetting financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position 

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle 

on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must 

not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event 

of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. 

 

4.16.4 Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments 

The Company classifies the fair value of its financial instruments in the following hierarchy, based on the 

inputs used in their valuation: 

 

Level 1 

The fair value of financial instruments quoted in active markets is based on their quoted closing price at the 

statement of financial position date. Examples include exchange-traded commodity derivatives and other 

financial assets such as investments in equity and debt securities. 

 

Level 2 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using 

valuation techniques using observable market data. Such valuation techniques include discounted cash 

flows, standard valuation models based on market parameters for interest rates, yield curves or foreign 

exchange rates, dealer quotes for similar instruments and use of comparable arm’s length transactions. 

 

Level 3 

The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of entity-specific valuations using 

inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

 

4.16.5 Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of financial asset and liability 

and of allocating interest income and expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate 

that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral 

part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected 

life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial 

recognition. 
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4.17 Leases 

 

a) The Company as lessee 

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company 

recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which 

it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases 

of low value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For 

these leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over 

the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic 

benefits from the leased assets are consumed. 

 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 

commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, 

the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate. 

 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise: 

• Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable; 

 •  Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at 

the commencement date; 

• The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 

• The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and 

• Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to 

terminate the lease. 

 

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position. The lease liability is 

subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the 

effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. 

 

The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use 

asset) whenever: 

• The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a 

change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured 

by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate. 

• The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under 

a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised 

lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change 

in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used). 

• A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which 

case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the 

revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification. 

 

The Company did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented. 

 

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments 

made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They 

are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Whenever the 

Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is 

located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a 

provision is recognized and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, 

the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories. 

 



 

 

HERFY FOOD SERVICES COMPANY  

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2021 

(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated) 

25 

 

 

 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

4.17. Leases (continued) 

 

a) The Company as lessee (continued) 

 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the right-of-use asset. 

If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the 

Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life 

of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease. 

 

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position. 

 

The Company applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any 

identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy. 

 

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and 

the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or 

condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line “Other expenses” in statement of 

comprehensive income. 

 

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account 

for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Company has not used this 

practical expedient. For a contract that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease 

components, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis 

of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease 

components. 

 

b) The Company as lessor 

The Company enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of its investment properties. The 

Company also rents equipment to retailers necessary for the presentation and customer fitting and testing of 

footwear and equipment manufactured by the Company. 

 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of 

the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as 

a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

 

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sub-lease as two separate 

contracts. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising 

from the head lease. 

 

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of 

the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

4.17. Leases (continued) 

 

(b) The Company as lessor (Continued) 

 

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the Company’s 

net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant 

periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. 

 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company regularly reviews the estimated unguaranteed residual value and 

applies the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, recognizing an allowance for expected credit losses on the lease 

receivables. 

 

Finance lease income is calculated with reference to the gross carrying amount of the lease receivables, except 

for credit-impaired financial assets for which interest income is calculated with reference to their amortized cost 

(i.e. after a deduction of the loss allowance). 

 

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components, the Company applies IFRS 15 to allocate the 

consideration under the contract to each component. 

 

4.18 Finance costs  

Finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying as-set are 

capitalized during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or 

sale. Other finance costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred and reported as 'financial charge'. 

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of 

funds. 

 

4.19 Revenue Recognition  

Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods sold, net of returns, trade 

discounts and volume rebates. 

  

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and is recognized when 

a customer obtains control of the goods or services. Determining the timing of the transfer of control – at a point 

in time or over time – requires judgement.  

 

The Company's revenue generating activities are as follows:  

 

a) Revenue from Sale of Goods  

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the risks of 

obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the 

products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has 

objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. 

 

b) Other Income  

1) Rentals income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the contract.  

2) Franchise income is recognized on a percentage of the revenue of the franchisee.  
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 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

4.19  Revenue Recognition (Continued) 

 

c) Sales Discount  

The goods are often sold with retrospective volume discounts based on aggregate sales over a 12 months 

period. Revenue from these sales is recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the 

estimated volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts, 

using the expected value method, and revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that 

a significant reversal will not occur. The related liability (included in trade and other payables) is recognized 

for expected volume discounts payable to customers in relation to sales made during the year.  

 

d) Sales Rebate  

The sales rebate are presented primarily as a deduction from gross sales based on entitlement that has been 

earned up to the statement of financial position date, for each relevant receivable arrangement. 

 

e) Sales Return  

Products are sold principally on a sale or return basis. Allowances for expected sales returns are calculated 

based on the forecasted return of expired products. Expected sales returns are netted off against revenue 

with the corresponding impact in ‘trade and other payables’ for cash sales and ‘trade receivables’ for credit 

sales. 

  

No element of financing component is deemed present as the sales are made either on cash or on credit term 

consistent with market practice. 

 

4.20 Selling, Distribution, General and Administration Expenses  

Selling, Distribution, General and Administration Expenses include direct and indirect costs not specifically 

part of Cost of Sales. Allocations between Cost of Sales and Selling, Distribution, General and Administration 

Expenses, when required, are made on a consistent basis. The Company recognizes  the marketing support from 

vendors in the selling and distribution expenses on an accrual basis.  

 

4.21 Government grant 

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with 

the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received. Government grants are recognized in profit 

or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs 

for which the grants are intended to compensate. 

 

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the 

purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognized under 

other income in the statement of comprehensive income for the period in which they become receivable. 

 

4.22 Segmental Reporting  

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may 

earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the 

Company's other components. All operating segments operating results are reviewed regularly by the 

Company's Chief Executive Officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to 

assess its performance. and for which discrete financial information is available.  

 

Segment results that are reported to the Company's Chief Executive Officer include items directly attributable 

to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.  
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 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

4.23 Earnings per share 

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (if any) for the common share. Basic earnings per 

share are calculated from net profit or loss by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders 

of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year, adjusted by 

the number of ordinary shares repurchased or issued during the year. Diluted earnings per share are adjusted by 

the profit or loss attributable to common equity holders of the Company and the weighted average number of 

shares outstanding during the year with the effect of all of the common shares that are likely to be issued. 

 

4.24 Dividends 

Dividends are recorded in the financial statements in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders 

of the Company.  

 

Interim dividends are recorded as liability in the period in which they are approved by the Board of Directors. 
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5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES  
 

Significant transactions and balances with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial 

statements, are as follows: 

Names of 

Related Parties 

Nature of 

Relationship 

 

Nature of transactions 

 

Note 

 

 2021 

 

2020 

Panda Retail 

Company 
Affiliate 

Sales to the affiliated 

Company 
 29,938,553 37,943,140 

Advertisement expense 

charge by the affiliate  
26 (2,544,988) (1,519,798) 

Rent charged by the affiliate 

to the Company 

  

(3,242,144) 

 

(2,875,395) 

Bazbazah 

International 

trading Company  

Affiliate 

Sales to the affiliated 

Company 
 575,460 490,310 

Rent charged by the affiliate 

to the Company 
 (435,000) (435,000) 

Rent charged by the 

Company to the affiliate 
 

 

247,167 

 

247,167 

Taza Restaurant 

Co. Ltd.  
Affiliate Sales to affiliated Company  1,429,009 1,571,944 

Meslan 

Investment Co, 
Affiliate Sales to affiliated Company  - 33,258 

Double Coffee 

Company 
Affiliate Sales to affiliated Company  42,099 - 

Green Leaves Co Affiliate Sales to affiliated Company  
 

162,745 

 

13,490 

 

 

Mr. Ahmed 

Hamad Al Saeed 

 

Shareholder 

 

Management fee 

Salaries and benefit paid to 

the shareholder  

             

(496,300)          

(169,880) 

 

 

(1,657,079) 

(1,061,671) 

 

Rent charged by the 

shareholder to the Company 

Sales to Shareholder 

  

(630,000) 

(29,814) 

 

(630,000) 

- 

Kinan Company 
    Affiliate 

Rent charged by the affiliate 

to the Company 

  

(157,413) 

 

(162,744) 

El Mazaq El 

Amsal Company 
Affiliate 

Rent charged by the 

Company to the affiliate 

  

350,000 

 

- 

Qetaf Company 

for Investment 

and Real Estate 

Development 

 

Affiliate 

Rent charged by the affiliate 

to the Company 

 

 

         

(2,200,000) 

 

 

           

(2,000,000) 

 

 

Mr. Khalid Al 

Saeed 
Board 

Member 

Sales to Board Member 

Rent charged by the board 

member to the Company 

 21,829 

 

(200,000) 

- 

 

(200,000) 

Afia International 

Company.  
Affiliate 

Purchases from the 

affiliated Company 

 
(5,629,436) (2,810,639) 

Mama Sauce 

Factory 
Affiliate 

Purchases from affiliated 

Company 

  

(13,879,040) 

 

(13,562,482) 

United Sugar 

Company 
Affiliate 

Purchases from the 

affiliated Company 

  

(2,913,115) 

 

(2,628,752) 

Al Marai 

Company 
Affiliate 

Purchases from the 

affiliated Company 

  

(2,260,545) 

 

(3,714,245) 

International 

Food Industries 

Company 
Affiliate 

 

Purchases from the 

affiliated Company 

  

 

(4,743,537) 

 

 

(3,943,974) 
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5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES  

 

Management fees 

In accordance with the Company’s Bylaws, the Board of Directors are authorized to determine the management 

fees to be paid to the Managing Director. Accordingly, the Board of Directors decided to provide 3% of the 

Company’s net profit before management fee to be paid annually as management fee to the Ex Managing 

Director, Mr. Ahmed Al Saeed (shareholder), until his resignation. Such amount is charged to the statement of 

profit or loss and included within general and administrative expenses.  

 

Remunerations of the Company's key management personnel 

Key management personnel are those persons, including the Board of Directors members, Managing Director 

and top executives having authority arid responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of 

the Company, directly or indirectly. 

 

The total remunerations of Company's key management personnel for the period ended 31 December 2021 

amounted to SR 8.76 million (31 December 2020: SR 8.05 million). Such remunerations include basic salaries, 

bonuses and other benefits as per the Company's policies.  

 

Balances as at 

   As at 31 December 

   
2021 2020 

   

Due from related parties – Trade, other receivables and 

prepayments 
   

Panda Retail Company    7,690,484 9,366,019 

Mr. Ahmed Hamad Al Saeed   310,871 - 

Taza Restaurant Co. Ltd.   216,578 346,049 

Mr. Khalid Al Saeed   45,185 23,356 

Double Coffee Company   33,042 - 

Green Leaves Co,   32,062 13,490 

Meselan Investment Co,   31,671 31,671 

   8,359,893 9,780,585 

  

     

  As at 31 December 

  
2021 2020 

  

Due to related parties – Trade and other payables    

     

Qetaf Company for Investment and Real Estate Development   1,019,492 419,925 

Afia International Company   995,106 309,781 

International Food Industries Company  724,010 743,023 

Bazbazah International Trading Company   527,319 290,051 

United Sugar Factory   414,130 171,898 

Mama Sauce Factory   376,020 1,313,348 

Kinan Company   222,130 295,171 

Al Marai Company   30,299 910,310 

Mr. Ahmed Hamad Al Saeed   - 2,093,577 

   4,308,506 6,547,084 
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5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES  

 

*The amount pertains to the interest-free loan that is repayable on demand. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  As at 31 December 

 

Due from related party – Net investment in finance lease 
 2021 2021 

Bazbazah International Trading Company   200,000 250,840 

   200,000 250,840 

 

Due from related party – Other receivable  
   

Key Management personnel*   800,000 800,000 

   800,000 800,000 

 

 

Due to related parties – Lease Liabilities  

   

     

Qetaf Company for Investment and Real Estate Development   24,327,525 26,037,271 

Panda Retail Company   2,529,442 4,752,162 

Mr. Ahmed Hamad Al Saeed   630,000 721,524 

Bazbazah International Trading Company   440,595 950,845 

   27,927,562 32,461,802 

 

Due to related party – Trade and Other payables  
   

Board and Committee Renumerations   3,143,998 3,300,000 
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 

 

Land 

 

Buildings and 

leasehold 

improvements 

 

Machinery 

and 

equipment 

Furniture and 

office 

equipment 

 

Motor 

Vehicles 

 

Capital work 

in process 

 

 

2021 

 

 

2020 

Cost         

January 1 177,260,913 746,667,386 499,802,409 131,797,755 85,929,108 105,640,395 1,747,097,966 1,704,528,272 

Additions - 8,401,973 3,224,743 340,634 21,572 71,820,185 83,809,107 54,766,631 

Disposals - (386,706) (4,658,847) (283,872) (2,345,411) (4,211,997) (11,886,833) (12,196,937) 

Transfer from capital work in process - 718,581 16,323,197 7,358,071 7,102,751 (31,502,600) - - 

Transfer to investment property                    -        (4,582,156 ) - - - -        (4,582,156) - 

December 31 177,260,913 750,819,078 514,691,502 139,212,588 90,708,020 141,745,983 1,814,438,084 1,747,097,966 

Accumulated depreciation 
        

January 1 - 307,499,925 294,744,744 81,759,368 60,670,667 - 744,674,704 661,030,935 

Charge for the year - 36,162,093 29,481,322 14,162,346 5,747,190 - 85,552,951 92,583,622 

Disposal - (362,265) (3,965,822) (155,570) (2,177,188) - (6,660,845) (8,939,853) 

Transfer to investment property - (381,449) - - -                         - (381,449)  - 

December 31 - 342,918,304 320,260,244 95,766,144 64,240,669 - 823,185,361 744,674,704 

Less: Provision for impairment - - - (249,127) - (3,026,506) (3,275,633) (3,275,633) 

Net book value         

December 31 2021 177,260,913 407,900,774 194,431,258 43,197,317 26,467,351 138,719,477 987,977,090  

December 31 2020 177,260,913 439,167,461 205,057,665 49,789,260 25,258,441 102,613,889  999,147,629 
 

Depreciation is distributed on the Items of income as followings: 

 Note 2021 2020 

Cost of revenues 24 80,222,990 87,630,968 

Selling and distribution expenses 26 3,213,769 2,967,558 

General and administrative expenses 27 2,116,192 1,985,096 

  85,552,951 92,583,622 

6.1 Capital work in progress mainly relates to the branches under construction.
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7. RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 

 

7.1. Right-of-use assets 

 

 Land Buildings 2021 2020 

Cost     

January 1  301,817,102   385,369,553   687,186,655   659,842,946  

Additions  -   29,710,408   29,710,408   27,343,709  

Terminations* -  (24,171,405)  (24,171,405) - 

December 31  301,817,102   390,908,556   692,725,658   687,186,655  

Accumulated depreciation     

January 1  60,454,199   90,110,964   150,565,163   76,978,699  

Charge for the year  31,240,907   38,275,853   69,516,760   73,586,464  

Terminations   (24,171,405)  (24,171,405)  

December 31  91,695,106   104,215,412   195,910,518   150,565,163  

Net book value     

December 31 2021  210,121,996   286,693,144   496,815,140   

December 31 2020  241,362,903   295,258,589    536,621,492  

 

Depreciation is distributed on the Items of income as followings: 

 

 Note Land Building 2021 2020 

Cost of revenues 24 29,935,487 36,587,818 66,615,828 70,277,334 

Selling and distribution expenses 26 95,649 116,905 212,554 214,006 

General and administrative expenses 27 1,209,770 1,478,608   2,688,378 3,095,124 

  31,240,906 38,183,331 69,516,760 73,586,464 

 

* These terminations relate to the contracts completed during the year. 

 

7.2. Lease liabilities 

 
  2021 2020 

Balance at beginning of the year   549,903,395 579,327,885 

Additions during the year 7.1 29,710,408 27,343,709 

Charge for the year 28 26,308,435 27,882,731 

Lease payment during the year  (89,368,087) (84,650,930) 

Balance as at year end  516,554,151 549,903,395 

 

 

  As at 31 December 

  2021 2020 

Current   58,933,274 92,517,463 

Non-current  457,620,877 457,385,932 

  516,554,151 549,903,395 
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7. RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

 

7.2. Lease liabilities (Continued) 

 

Set out below, are the amounts recognized in profit or loss: 

  2021 2020 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 7.1 69,516,760 73,586,464 

Lease financial cost (included in finance cost) 28 26,308,435 27,882,731 

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in 

statement of profit or loss) 
24,27 28,371,697 25,855,560 

Total amounts recognized in profit or loss  124,196,892 127,324,755 

 

The rate applied is 4% to 7% (2020: 4% to 7%) for all the leases of the company based on varying lease terms. 

  

 
 

As at 31 December 

2021 

Year 1  58,933,274 

Year 2  58,183,406 

Year 3  50,366,173 

Year 4  45,340,934 

Year 5 onwards  486,823,307 

Total undiscounted lease liabilities  699,647,094 

Less: Finance cost  (183,092,943) 

  516,554,151 

7.3. The lease liabilities balance includes amounts due to related parties. Please refer note 5. 

 

7.4. The Company’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for 

 The Company leases various buildings for restaurants. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 

2 to 25 years but may have extension options as described in note 7.5 below. Lease term are negotiated on an 

individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose 

any covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for financing purpose. 

 

 Lease are recognized as a right-of-use assets and corresponding liability at the date at which the leased assets is 

available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance costs. The 

finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of profit 

on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 

 

 The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-

line basis. 

 Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include 

the net present value of the following lease payments: 

• Fixed payment (including in –substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable. 

• Variable lease payment that are based on an index or rate. 

• Amount expected to be payable by lessee under residual value guarantees. 

• The exercise price of a purchase option if the lease is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and. 

• Payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that 

option. 
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7. RIGHT-OF-USE-ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

 

7.4. The Company’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for (continued) 

 

The lease payments are discounted using the profit rate implicit in the lease, if that rate cannot be determined 

then the Company’s incremental financing rate is used. The Company has used the incremental financial 

facilities rate 4% to 7% (2020: 4% to 7%) 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: 

• The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability. 

• Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. 

• Any initial direct costs, and. 

• Restoration costs. 

Payment associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis 

as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets 

comprise small buildings for restaurant and other small items of office furniture. 

7.5. Extention and termination options 

 Extention and termination options are included in a number of building leases across the Company. These terms 

are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extention and 

termination options held are exercisable only the Company and not by the respective lessor. 

 

7.6. Residual value guarantees  

 To optimize lease costs during the contract period the Company sometime provides residual value guarantees 

in relation to restaurant building leases. 

 

8. NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASE 

 

 Note 2021 2020 

Net book value at the beginning of the year  12,055,114 12,463,006 

Termination during the year*  (1,780,279) - 

Lease payments received  (1,085,000) (731,290) 

Finance income  212,350 323,398 

Net book value at the end of the year  9,402,185 12,055,114 

Less: Allowance for impairment 8.1 (1,169,484) (1,116,707) 

  8,232,701 10,938,407 

 

   As at 31 December 

Current portion   2021 2020 

Net investment in finance lease   1,073,831 2,685,880 

Non-current portion    

Net investment in finance lease   7,158,870 8,252,527 

  8,232,701 10,938,407 

 

* These terminations relate to the investment properties contracts evacuated during the year. 
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8. NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASE (CONTINUED) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As at 31 December 2021 

Gross investment 

(Undiscounted) 

Unearned finance 

cost 

Net investment 

(Discounted) 

Future lease payments contractual cash 

flows   
  

 

Year 1 1,515,000 441,169 1,073,831 

Year 2 1,365,000 339,434 1,025,566 

Year 3 1,035,000 257,373 777,627 

Year 4 955,000 237,480 717,520 

Year 5 onwards 6,087,500 1,449,343 4,638,157 

 10,957,500 2,724,799 8,232,701 

 

 

 

As at 31 December 2020 
Gross investment 

(Undiscounted) 

Unearned finance 

cost 

Net investment 

(Discounted) 

Future lease payments contractual cash 

flows   
  

 

Year 1 2,966,707 280,827 2,685,880 

Year 2 1,828,000 280,827 1,547,173 

Year 3 1,689,500 280,827 1,408,673 

Year 4 1,327,000 280,827 1,046,173 

Year 5 onwards 6,658,000 1,290,785 5,367,215 

 14,469,207 2,414,093 12,055,114 

 

 8.1. Movement in allowance for impairment of net investment in finance lease: 

  As at 31 December 

  2021 2020 

Opening  1,116,707  -    

Allowance made during the year  52,777  1,116,707  

  1,169,484  1,116,707  

 

8.2.   Net investment in finance lease represents the sub-leases given from the finance leases of the Company. The 

Company’s finance lease arrangement does not include variable payments. 

 

8.3. The rate applied is 4% to 7% (2020: 4% to 7%) for all the contracts of the Company based on varying lease 

terms. 

 

8.4. There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumption made during the current 

reporting period in assessing the loss allowance for finance lease receivables. 

 

8.5 The net investment in finance lease balance include amounts due from a related party. Please refer note 5. 
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9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS  

 

  Computer software 

  2021 2020 

Cost:     

At the beginning of the year  27,866,228 25,722,476 

Additions  530,508 2,153,672 

Write-off  - (9,920) 

At the end of the year  28,396,736 27,866,228 

    

Accumulated amortization:    

At the beginning of the year  13,163,787 10,279,888 

Charge for the year  2,982,002 2,893,819 

Write-off  - (9,920) 

At the end of the year  16,145,789 13,163,787 

Less: Provision for impairment  (2,854,009) (3,627,242) 

Net book value  9,396,938 11,075,199 

 

Amortization is distributed on the Items of income as followings: 

 Note 2021 2020 

Cost of revenues 24 998,813 1,106,389 

Selling and distribution expenses 26 282,627 282,683 

General and administrative expenses 27 1,700,562 1,504,747 

  2,982,002 2,893,819 
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10. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

 

Land 

 

Buildings 

 

Machinery 

and 

equipment 

Furniture 

and office 

equipment 

 

2021 

 

2020 

Cost:        

At the beginning of 

the year 5,597,960 47,608,100 1,143,850 351,959 54,701,869 54,390,896 

Additions - - - - - 310,973 

Transfers from 

Property plant and 

equipment - 4,200,707 - - 4,200,707 - 

At the end of the 

year 5,597,960 51,808,807 1,143,850 

 

351,959 

 

58,902,576 

 

54,701,869 

 

Accumulated 

depreciation:       

At the beginning of 

the year - 27,095,537 702,802 226,804 28,025,143 24,510,006 

Charge for the year - 2,715,799 89,190 37,506 2,842,495 3,515,137 

At the end of the 

year - 29,811,336 791,992 

 

264,310 

 

30,867,638 

 

28,025,143 

Net book value       

December 31, 2021 5,597,960 21,997,471 351,858 87,649 28,034,938  

December 31, 2020 5,597,960 20,512,563 441,048 125,155  26,676,726 

 

10.1.  Machinery, equipment and furniture & office equipment are not significant part of investment property and  

therefore are not presented separately in Property, Plant and Equipment. 

 

10.2.  All investment properties have been kept for purpose of earning rental income. 

 

10.3. Depreciation is charged to the general and administrative expenses. Please refer note 27. 

 

10.4. The fair value of investment property is amounted SR.43.3 million (2020: SR.30.59 million). 

 

10.5.  Measurement of fair value  

The valuation of the investment property (the “properties”) is determined by external independent property 

valuer by using the income capitalization approach which is 2nd level of fair value. The valuer is licensed by the 

Saudi Authority for accredited Valuers (“TAQEEM”) and have recent experience in the location and category 

of the property being valued.   
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11. INVENTORIES 

 

  As at 31 December 

 Note 2021 2020 

Raw materials  83,739,607 58,909,140 

Packing materials  13,863,203 13,702,356 

Spare parts, not held for sale  26,853,315 26,818,785 

Operational supplies  26,479,172 20,922,637 

  150,935,297 120,352,918 

Less: provision for slow moving inventory 11.1 (16,128,910) (15,408,692) 

  134,806,387 104,944,226 
  

11.1. Movement in provision for slow moving inventory is as follows:  

  2021 2020 

Opening   15,408,692 724,110 

Provision made during the year   720,218 14,684,582 

Closing  16,128,910 15,408,692 

 

 

12. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS 

 

  As at 31 December 

 Note 2021 2020 

Trade receivables – related parties 5 8,359,893 9,780,585 

Trade receivables – others  71,698,919 46,220,011 

 12.1 80,058,812 56,000,596 

Prepayment 12.2 56,365,604 52,070,043 

Advance for investment 12.3 - - 

Other receivables 12.4 27,394,408 45,187,113 

  163,818,824 153,257,752 

Less: Allowance for impairment of receivables 12.5 (14,982,342) (15,305,335) 

  148,836,482 137,952,417 

 

12.1. Aging of trade receivables is as follows:  

 As at 31 December 

 2021 2020 

1-30 days 52,593,482 31,118,096 

31-90 days 12,279,726 20,560,825 

91-365 days 5,346,645 4,694,707 

Over 1 year 9,838,959 626,968 

 80,058,812 56,000,596 
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12. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 

12.2. Prepayments 

  As at 31 December 

  2021 2020 

Prepaid government relation expenses  31,262,432 30,558,181 

Prepaid advertisement  10,543,081 - 

Prepaid rent  6,421,617 14,565,321 

Prepaid insurance  2,003,333 1,757,391 

Others  6,135,141 5,189,150 

  56,365,604 52,070,043 

12.3.  Advance for investment 

 As at 31 December 

 Note 2021 2020 

Advance for investment 12.3.1 4,000,000 4,000,000 

Less: Provision for impairment 12.3.2 (4,000,000) (4,000,000) 

  - - 

 

12.3.1 This represents amount paid to Mr. Khaled Al Saeed, a related party for the partnership agreement in investment 

in land units dated 16 January 2005 for the purpose of utilizing it as a warehouse.  

12.3.2. On the recommendation of audit committee on 24 May 2015 to implement the Board's decision in its meeting 

on 14 July 2014 for the provision of SR 2 million was estimated to meet the potential decline in the value of 

investment and due to the current faltering possession with increased probability of failure in recovery, the 

amount has been fully provided. 

12.4. Other receivables 

  As at 31 December 

  2021 2020 

Advances to suppliers  15,154,840 36,096,390 

Employee loans *  7,730,028 1,037,701 

Other receivables  4,509,540 8,053,022 

  27,394,408 45,187,113 

 

*This includes advances to employees and amounts due from a related party. Please refer note 5. 

12.5. Movement in allowance for impairment of trade receivables is as follows: 

  As at 31 December 

  2021 2020 

Opening  15,305,335 4,009,146 

(Reversal) / Allowance made during the year  (322,993) 11,296,189 

  14,982,342 15,305,335 
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13. INVESTMENT CARRIED AT FVTPL 

 

  As at 31 December 

 Note 2021 2020 

Al-Rajhi Commodities Fund 13.1 - 2,243,203 

Equity Investment - Quoted 13.2 811,681 548,161 

  811,681 2,791,364 
  

13.1. The movement in investments in Al-Rajhi Commodities Fund is as follows: 

 

 2021 2020 

Balance at beginning of the year 2,243,203 26,515,939 

Purchase during the year 90,000,000 195,000,000 

Redemption during the year (92,433,773) (220,000,000) 

Realized gain during the year 190,570 802,888 

Unrealized loss during the year - (75,624) 

Balance at the end of the year - 2,243,203 

 

13.2. The movement of investments in quoted equity shares is as follows: 

 

 2021 2020 

Balance at beginning of the year 548,161 - 

Purchase during the year - 276,595 

Unrealized gain during the year 263,520 271,566 

Balance at the end of the year 811,681 548,161 

 

 

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 

  As at 31 December 

Cash in bank  2021 2020 

- Local currency   19,812,165 109,114,917 

- Foreign currency   1,744,569 3,560,935 

Cash in hand  8,928,981 6,254,662 

  30,485,715 118,930,514 
 

 

Cash in banks are maintained in current accounts and the Company doesn’t earn income on these balances. 

 

15. SHARE CAPITAL 

 

The Company’s paid-up capital consists of 64.680 million shares (31 December 2020: 64.680 million shares) 

of SAR 10 each. 

 

 

16. STATUTORY RESERVE 

 

The Company is required to transfer at least 10% of its net profit each year to statutory reserve until such reserve 

equals to 30% of its share capital. This reserve is not available for distribution to the shareholders.  
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17. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 

 

  As at 31 December 

 Note 2021 2020 

Secured long-term borrowings at amortized cost    

SIDF loan – Non profit bearing financing  - 3,642,000 

    

Unsecured long-term borrowings at amortized cost    

Murabaha  17.1 30,528,251 57,455,580 

  30,528,251 61,097,580 

 

 

17.1. These unsecured facilities are payable in semi-annual installments over the period of five to nine years. These 

bank facilities bear finance costs at market prevailing rates.  

17.2. The facility agreements include covenants which, among other things, require the Company to maintain certain 

financial ratios. As of 31 December 2021, the Company was in compliance with all covenants of the facility 

agreement. 

17.3. The long-term borrowings include finance cost payable amounting to SR 598,143 (2020: SR 2,778,196). 

18. EMPLOYEES’ POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 

18.1  During the year the actuarial valuations of the defined benefit obligations were carried out under the Projected 

Unit Credit Method using the following significant assumptions: 
 

  As at 31 December 

  2021 2020 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation  101,843,814 93,527,855 
 

  2021 2020 

- Number of employees  5,586 5,403 

- Rate of change in salary (% per annum)  2.70% 2.00% 

- Average age of employees (years)  32.79% 32.77 

- Avearge number of years of previous experience  5.70% 5.14 

- Discount rate  2.70% 2.00% 

- Employee turnover (withdrawal) rates   Moderate Moderate 

 

Mortality rates assumed are based on the adjusted SLIC 2001 – 2005 mortality table. 

 

 As at 31 December 

 2021 2020 

Current portion   

Long-term financial facilities 15,222,068 24,317,472 

   

Non-current portion   

Long-term financial facilities 15,306,183 36,780,108 

 30,528,251 61,097,580 
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18. EMPLOYEES’ POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

 

18.2  Change in present value of defined benefit obligation 

  2021 2020 

Opening balance  93,527,855 72,900,362 

Service Cost:    

 Current Service Cost  10,043,267 8,041,374 

Interest on defined benefit obligations  1,778,084 2,122,566 

Transfer of balance to Other liabilities for staff left  (1,601,224) (3,175,882) 

Benefits paid during the period   (9,247,283) (4,042,874) 

Actuarial losses   7,343,115 17,682,309 

Closing balance  101,843,814 93,527,855 

 

18.3 Amount recognized in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended. 

  2021 2020 

Service Cost  10,043,267 8,041,374 

Net interest on Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset)  1,778,084 2,122,566 

  11,821,351 10,163,940 

 

18.4 Amount recognized in the statement of the other comprehensive income for the year ended 

  2021 2020 

Actuarial Losses due to change in financial assumption  8,514,024 6,499,340 

Actuarial Losses due to change in demographic assumption - - 

Actuarial (Gain) / Losses due to change in experience assumptions (1,170,909) 11,182,969 

  7,343,115 17,682,309 

 

 

18.5 Sensitivity Analysis of significant actuarial assumptions 

  

Change in 

assumption 

Increase / (decrease) in present value 

of employees' post-employment 

benefit liability 

  Amount % 

Discount Rate +1% 94,104,324 (7.60%) 

Discount Rate -1% 110,929,725 8.92% 

Long-Term Salary +1% 111,274,330 9.26% 

Long-Term Salary -1% 93,649,491 (8.05%) 

Withdrawal rate +100 bps 100,422,476 (1.40%) 

Withdrawal rate -100 bps 103,423,544 1.55% 

Mortalility rate +100 bps 101,797,396 (0.05%) 

Mortality rate -100 bps 101,890,625 0.05% 

 

 The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions 

constant. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions 

the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method 

at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the liability of all schemes recognized 

within the statement of financial position. 
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18. EMPLOYEES’ POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

18.6 Maturity profile: 

  

 
 

As at 31 December 

2021 

Year 1  16,870,161 

Year 2  7,467,238 

Year 3  8,190,833 

Year 4  7,073,669 

Year 5  6,743,625 

Year 6 onwards  84,096,709 

Total undiscounted defined benefit obligation  130,442,235 

Less: Finance cost  (28,598,421) 

  101,843,814 

 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8.08 years. 

  

 
 

As at 31 

December 2021 

Current portion   

Employee’s post-employment benefit  18,232,490 

   

Non-current portion   

Employee’s post-employment benefit  83,611,324 

  101,843,814 

 

19. SHORT TERM LOANS 

The Company has obtained Murabaha Finance with local bank. These unsecured facilities are repriced every 

three months and bear finance costs at market prevailing rates. 

 

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

 

  As at 31 December 

 Note 2021 2020 

Trade payable – related parties  5 4,308,506 6,547,084 

Trade payable – third parties  56,171,292 81,183,154 

Accrued expenses 20.1 59,951,179  63,965,516 

Other payables 20.2 18,558,634 19,512,148 

  138,989,611 171,207,902 
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 

 

20.1 Accrued expenses 

  As at 31 December 

 Note 2021 2020 

Employee annual leave and ticket accrual  24,309,176 22,621,819 

Accrued rent  9,089,052  2,380,482 

Accrued sales commission  4,895,921  3,369,471 

Bonus accrual  4,630,222 7,336,028 

Accrued advertisement  3,382,311 7,410,407 

Accrued BOD and committee remuneration 5 3,143,998 3,300,000 

Accrued utilities  2,930,028 7,329,370 

Accrued GOSI  1,990,908 2,382,825 

Accrued professional and consultancy  400,250 3,181,495 

Other accruals  5,179,313  4,653,619 

  59,951,179  63,965,516 

 

20.2 Other payables 

  As at 31 December 

 Note 2021 2020 

VAT payable   7,977,592 8,155,339 

Payable to employees – final settlement  5,441,535 2,262,893 

Payable to vendor  1,681,835 231,366 

Unearned revenue  1,473,498 7,823,462 

Advances from customers  793,368 709,260 

Other payables  1,190,806 329,828 

  18,558,634 19,512,148 

 

21. PROVISION FOR ZAKAT 

 

21.1    Zakat movement 

The movement in the provision for zakat is as follows: 

 2021 2020 

Balance at the beginning of the year 13,667,451 13,667,451 

Provided during the year, net 667,079 5,057,700 

Adjustment of prior year charge - 302,097 

 667,079 5,359,797 

Payment during the year  (5,062,185) (5,359,797) 

Balance at the end of the year 9,272,345 13,667,451 
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21     PROVISION FOR ZAKAT (CONTINUED) 

21.2 STATUS OF ASSESSMENTS 

 

Zakat return for the year ended 31 December 2020 has been filed and are under review with the Zakat, Tax and  

Customs Authority (“ZATCA”). The Company has obtained a certificate from the ZATCA valid 29 Ramadan  

1443H corresponding to 30 April 2022. 

 

Zakat assessments have been raised by the ZATCA for the year 2014 - 2020 assessing  additional zakat liability 

of SR 21.15 million against which the Company has filed an appeal. Company is confident that the assessments 

will be in their favor and hence, no provision has been made in these financial statements. 

 

Currently, there are no assessments rendered by ZATCA for the years 2008 – 2013. 

 

22. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

 

a) Contingencies 

The Company is liable for the bank guarantees issued on behalf of the Company amounting to SR 9.9 million 

(31 December 2020: SR 8.13 million) and letters of credit issued on behalf of the Company amounting to SR 

1.4 million (31 December 2020: SR 0.3 million) in the normal course of business.  

 

b) Commitments 

The capital expenditure committed by the Company but not incurred till 31 December 2021 amounting to SR 

5.6 million (31 December 2020: SR 9.95 million).  

 

 

23. REVENUE 

 

  

23.1. Sales include amounts earned from related parties. Please refer note 5. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Gross sales 2021 2020 

- Local Sales – (23.1) 1,427,403,514 1,184,767,133 

- Export Sales  9,583,455 1,444,385 

 1,436,986,969 1,186,211,518 

Sales discount (80,245,216) (68,336,857) 

Sales rebate (13,331,964) (15,264,760) 

Sales return (29,553,468) (26,526,567) 

 (123,130,648) (110,128,184) 

Net sales 1,313,856,321 1,076,083,334 
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24. COST OF REVENUES 
 

24.1 This include the rent paid to the related parties for details, please refer note 5. 

25. OTHER INCOME, NET 
 

 

25.1 Franchise revenue consists mainly of accrued revenue calculated on the basis of the percentage of sales in 

accordance with the terms and conditions agreed between the company and the franchise parties in the State of 

Kuwait and Bangladesh. 
 

26. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSE 
 

 

26.1. This includes the marketing support from the vendors and also include transactions with related party. (see note 

5) 

10.  Note 2021 2020 

Material consumed  387,293,161 312,492,612 

Employee cost  252,891,085 213,041,038 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6 80,222,990 87,630,968 

Depreciation on right-of-use assets 7.1 66,615,828 70,277,334 

Electric & other utilities cost  53,526,786 50,098,979 

Rent expenses 24.1 28,782,778 25,180,661 

Repair and maintenance  22,744,464 23,601,791 

Amortization of intangible assets 9 998,813 1,106,389 

Provision for slow moving inventory 11.1 720,218 14,684,582 

Other overhead cost  34,568,222 28,380,007 

  928,364,345 826,494,361 

11.  Note 2021 2020 

Rental income from investment property  5,236,115 8,701,239 

Scrap Sales  3,758,407 3,532,134 

Rent concessions  3,734,699 11,465,704 

Franchise income  25.1 1,039,811 809,553 

Gain / (loss) on sale of Property, plant and equipment  206,420 (1,905,285) 

Government grant  - 1,031,263 

Other  1,968,328 301,486 

  15,943,780 23,936,094 

12.  Note 2021 2020 

Sales Commissions   59,892,886 33,968,614 

Marketing expense 26.1 38,041,455 15,309,805 

Employee cost   23,107,479 21,007,957 

Repairs and maintenance  4,447,452 4,023,863 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6 3,213,769 2,967,558 

Amortization of intangible assets 9 282,627 282,683 

Depreciation on right-of-use assets 7.1 212,554 214,006 

Other expenses  7,146,616 6,228,882 

  136,344,838 84,003,368 
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27. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES 

 

 

28. FINANCE COST 

 

 

29. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

 

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data: 

 

 

Earnings per share for the year was calculated by dividing the net profit for the year with 64.68 million shares. 

There are no diluted shares which are convertible to basic shares at the year end.  

 

13.  Note 2021 2020 

Employee cost 5 52,014,875 48,409,880 

Board and Committee remuneration 5 3,766,664 3,300,000 

Depreciation on investment properties 10 2,842,495 3,515,137 

Depreciation on right-of-use assets 7.1 2,688,378 3,095,124 

Professional and consultancy  2,345,093 6,740,223 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6 2,116,192 1,985,096 

Amortization of intangible assets 9 1,700,562 1,504,747 

Telephone and electricity  1,499,558 1,429,929 

Travel expenses  953,008 1,187,403 

Management fee  5 496,300 1,657,079 

Repairs and maintenance  475,729 219,610 

(Reversal) / Provision for impairment on intangible  

assets 

 
(773,233) 3,627,242 

Provision for impairment on property, plant and 

equipment 

6 
- 3,275,633 

Other  5,633,030 6,829,496 

  75,758,651 86,776,599 

14.                                                                                             Note  

2021 2020 

Finance cost – Lease Liabilities                                             7.2 26,308,435 27,882,731 

Finance cost – Murabaha                                                        17 2,243,880 5,249,645 

 28,552,315 33,132,376 

15.  2021 2020 

Profit after zakat for the year 160,837,179 52,838,861 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose    

of basic / diluted earnings  64,680,000 64,680,000 

Earnings per share (SR)   

-Basic 2.49 0.82 

-Diluted 2.49 0.82 
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30. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

 

The Company operates principally in the following major business segments: 

1. Providing catering services and operating of restaurants; 

2. Manufacturing and selling of meat producers of Meat Factory; and 

3. Manufacturing and selling of pastries and bakery products of Bakeries and other  

  

These operating segments are identified based on internal reports that the entity’s Chief Financial Officer (CFO) regularly reviews in allocating resources to segments and 

assessing their performance ‘management approach’. The management approach is based on the way in which management organizes the segments within the entity for making 

operating decisions and in assessing performance. The management of the Company at the end of every reporting period, review the above segments for quantitative threshold 

as well as criteria for presenting the revenues and expenses for the segments. 

30.1. Selected financial information for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, summarized by the above business segments, was as follows: (in thousand Saudi 

Riyal) 

 Restaurants and catering Meat factory Bakeries and other Total 

 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Total segment revenue 1,082,521 831,409 178,870 155,799 194,634 186,165 1,456,025 1,173,373 

Inter-segment revenue - - (120,412) (80,444) (21,757) (16,846) (142,169) (97,290) 

Net revenue  1,082,521 831,409 58,458 75,355 172,877 169,319 1,313,856 1,076,083 

Zakat 667 5,360 - - - - 667 5,360 

Net income/ (loss) 60,812 (30,823) 63,244 50,910 36,781 32,752 160,837 52,839 

         

Finance cost 27,911 32,313 97 157 544 662 28,552 33,132 

Depreciation and amortization 136,489 147,606 5,879 6,585 18,526 18,388 160,894 172,579 

Non-current assets 1,315,690 1,360,562 42,355 42,718 171,338 178,494 1,529,383 1,581,774 

Total assets 1,476,000 1613,908 118,235 95,332 251,162 239,838 1,845,397 1,949,078 

Total liabilities 683,385 914,397 35,506 24,324 78,297 50,962 797,188 989,683 

   

The Company's operations are only conducted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 
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31. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption 

that the Company is a going concern and there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of 

its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms. 

  

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly 

available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those 

prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. 

 

When measuring the fair value, the Company uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are 

categorized into various levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 

follows. 

 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be accessed at 

the measurement date 

 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

 

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

 

The Company’s financial assets consist of cash and bank balances, investment, restricted cash deposits and 

other receivables, its financial liabilities consist of trade payables, financial facilities and other liabilities.  

 

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement 

and for non-recurring measurement 

 

All financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortized cost except investment carried at FVTPL. The 

carrying amounts of all other financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost approximate 

to their fair values. 

 

 

 

As at 31 December 2021 

Fair value 

Level 

1 2 3 Total 

FINANCIAL ASSET     

Investment carried at FVTPL     

Equity Investment – Quoted 811,681 - - 811,681 

 811,681 - - 811,681 

 

 Fair value 

 Level 

As at 31 December 2020 1 2 3 Total 

FINANCIAL ASSET     

Investment carried at FVTPL     

Al-Rajhi Commodities Fund - 2,243,203 - 2,243,203 

Equity Investment – Quoted 548,161 - - 548,161 

 548,161 2,243,203 - 2,791,364 
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31. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 

The above financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. 

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities 

are determined: 

 

 

Financial assets / financial 

liabilities 

Valuation 

technique(s) and 

key input(s) 

Significant 

unobservable 

input(s) 

Relationship and sensitivity 

of unobservable inputs to fair 

value 

Al-Rajhi Commodities Fund Net Assets Value N/A N/A 

 

32. RISK MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIALS INSTRUMENTS 

 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, credit risk, liquidity risk, market price risk arid 

capital management risk. 

 

32.1 Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to financial instruments will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the 

other party to incur a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk on its bank balances and trade 

receivables and other receivables as follows. 

  As at 31 December 

  2021 2020 

Cash at bank  21,556,734 112,675,852 

Trade and other receivables  92,470,878 85,882,374 

  114,027,612 198,558,226 

 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure Credit risk on receivable and 

other receivable and bank balances is limited as:  

• Cash balances are held with banks with sound credit ratings ranging from BBB+ to A 1. 

• The receivables are shown net of allowance for impairment of trade receivables and sales returns. 

 

The Company manages credit risk with respect to receivables from customers by monitoring in accordance with 

defined policies and procedures.  

The Company seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to customers by setting credit limits for individual 

customers and by monitoring outstanding receivables on an ongoing basis, the receivable balances are 

monitored with the result that the Company's exposure to bad debts is not significant. Trade receivables 

outstanding balance comprises of 100% in KSA at December 31, 2021.  

 

For financial assets, the Company has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance 

at lifetime ECL. The Company determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix, 

estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of the debtors, adjusted as 

appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic conditions. Accordingly, the credit 

risk profile of these assets is presented based on their past due status in terms of the provision matrix. Note 4 

include further details on the loss allowance for these assets respectively. 
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32. RISK MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIALS INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 

32.2 Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments 

associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from the inability to sell a financial asset quickly 

at an amount close to its fair value. Following are the contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period 

of financial liabilities. The amounts are grossed and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments. 

 As at 31 December 2021 

 
Carrying amount 

Less than 1 

year 

1 year to 5 

years 

More than 5 

years 

Long term borrowings 30,528,251 15,222,068 15,306,183 - 

Trade and other payables 138,989,611 138,989,611 - - 

 169,517,862 154,211,679 15,306,183 - 

 

 As at 31 December 2020 

 
Carrying amount 

Less than 1 

year 

1 year to 5 

years 

More than 5 

years 

Long term borrowings 61,097,580 24,317,472 36,780,108 - 

Short term loan 100,278,955 100,278,955 - - 

Trade and other payables 171,207,902 171,207,902 - - 

 332,584,437 295,804,329 36,780,108 - 

 

Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring on a regular basis that sufficient funds and banking and other credit 

facilities are available to meet the Company's future commitments. The Company's terms of sales require 

amounts to be paid either on a cash on delivery or on a term basis. 

32.3 Market Risk  

Market price risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market 

prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices, will affect the Company’s income or the 

value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control 

market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.  
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32. RISK MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIALS INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

32.4 Currency Risk  

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange 

rates. The Company transactions are principally in Saudi Riyals and US Dollars. As the Saudi Riyals is pegged 

against US Dollar, the Company does not have any significant exposure to currency risk. The Company also 

has some transactions in EURO, GBP, AUD and AED, which were not significant. 

 At 31 December 2021 

 USD EURO GBP AED 

Cash at bank 318,696 135,819 - - 

Trade payables (3,090,864) (296,033) (1,238) (37,460) 

 (2,772,168) (160,214) (1,238) (37,460) 

 

 At 31 December 2020 

 USD EURO GBP AED 

Cash at bank 655,399 261,922 - - 

Trade payables (2,640,427) (343,399) (6,037) (269) 

 (1,985,028) (81,477) (6,037) (269) 

 

32.5 Interest rate risk  

Interest rate risks is the risk associated with the effect of fluctuation in the prevailing interest rates on the 

Company's financial position and cash flows. The Company interest rate arise mainly from its borrowings which 

are on fixed rate of interest therefore the cash flow interest rate risk is considered minimal. The rates of interest 

on borrowings are close to the market rates, therefore management believes that fair value is not significant. 
 

32.6 Capital Management  

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market 

confidence and to sustain the future development of its business. The Board of Directors monitor the return on 

capital employed and the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.  

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:  

1) to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns 

for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and  

2) to provide an adequate return to shareholders  

 

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and risk characteristics of 

the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may. for example, adjust 

the amount of dividends paid to shareholders and issue new shares.  

The company relies heavily on long - term loans and cash sales to meet its capital expenditures 
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32. RISK MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIALS INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 

32.7 Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities 

  As at 31 December 

  2021 2020 

Financial assets    

Total financial assets at fair value through profit & 

loss 
   

Investment carried at FVTPL  811,681 2,791,364 

  811,681 2,791,364 

Total financial assets at amortized cost    

Cash and cash equivalents  30,485,715 118,930,514 

Trade and other receivables  92,470,878 85,882,374 

  122,956,593 204,812,888 

  123,768,274 207,604,252 
 

  As at 31 December 

  2021 2020 

Financial liabilities 

Total financial liabilities at amortized cost 
   

Long term borrowings  30,528,251 61,097,580 

Short term loan  - 100,278,955 

Trade and other payables  138,089,611 171,207,902 

  168,617,862 332,584,437 

 

33 RECLASSIFICATION FOR PRIOR PERIODS FIGURES 

Certain comparative information has also been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.  

 

34 DIVIDENDS 

On 13 Ramadan 1442H, corresponding to 25 April 2021G, the shareholders in their Annual General Meeting 

approved dividends of SR 1 per share (2020: SR 1.1 per share during the 2nd Quarter) which was paid on 27 

Ramadan 1442H corresponding to 9 May 2021G. 

 

35 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

There have been no significant subsequent events since the year-ended that would require additional disclosure 

or adjustment in these financial statements. 

 

36 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE 

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue on 20 March 2022G (corresponding to 17 

Shaban 1443H) by the Board of Directors of the Company.  

  


